
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., November 22, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, November 15, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, November 20, 2022 
 

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – October 27, 2022   

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S) 

                                                        

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2023-005 ………………………………………………………….          1 - 29 

Resolution approving the Section Eight Management Assessment 

Program (SEMAP) Certification for Fiscal Year ending 2022 

2. Intent of Award ……………………………………………………………………………         30 - 39 

RFP#GHURA-COCC-022-003; Independent Financial Audit Services 

3. Intent to Rescind Board Action Item #120/22……………………………..         40 - 48 

GHURA-06-16-2022-CDBG; Construction of MTM Community  

Recreational Facility 

 

V.   OLD BUSINESS 

1. Change Order ……………………………………………………………………………….        49 - 51 

To add a staircase to the Section 8 Office Expansion – O.H. Construction 

                                                                                                                                      
VI.    GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  1.   Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, December 13, 2022 

      @ 12:00 p.m.  

    

 

   VII.   ADJOURNMENT  

 

 

 



13
Tu

es
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r  

15
, 2

02
2 

Th
e 

Pa
c

if
ic

 D
a

il
y 

N
ew

s
gu

am
pd

n.
co

m

wORlD / NaTiON

Associated Press

Saturday’s collision be-
tween two World War 
II-era military planes at 
a Dallas air show was the 
latest in a long list of crash-
es involving vintage planes 
used or designed for mili-
tary purposes. Some recent 
fatal crashes in the U.S. and 
abroad:

— Oct. 2, 2019: A 
four-engine, propel-
ler-driven B-17G Flying 
Fortress bomber with 13 
people aboard crashed at 
Bradley International Air-
port, north of Hartford, 
Connecticut, during a trav-
eling vintage aircraft show. 
Seven people were killed 
and six were hurt. The 
National Transportation 
Safety Board found that 
pilot error was the proba-
ble cause, with inadequate 
maintenance a contribut-
ing factor.

— Nov. 17, 2018: A pri-
vately owned vintage World 

War II Mustang fighter 
airport plane crashed into 
the parking lot of an apart-
ment complex in Freder-
icksburg, Texas, killing the 
pilot and a passenger. The 
P-51D Mustang was re-
turning after performing a 
flyover during a living his-
tory show at the national 
Museum of the Pacific War. 
The aircraft was destroyed, 
and several vehicles in the 
parking lot were damaged.

— Aug. 4, 2018: A 
79-year-old Junkers Ju-52 
plane operated by the Swiss 
company Ju-Air plunged 
into the Piz Segnas moun-
tain near the Flims ski re-
sort in eastern Switzerland, 
killing all 20 on board. 
Retired from Switzerland’s 
air force in 1981, the Ger-
man-built plane was car-
rying tourists who wanted 
to take “adventure flights” 
to experience the coun-
try’s landscape in vintage 
planes. 

Recent fatal crashes 
involving vintage aircraft

THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
Board of Commissioners Meeting

Tuesday, November 22, 2022 at 12:00 PM.
This meeting is open to the public via Zoom.

Topic: GHURA BOC Meeting Nov 22, 2022
Time: Nov 22, 2022 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85342765622?pwd=aC9nME12K3JLT3pmN0l5anRZ-
Tm5lQT09

Meeting ID: 853 4276 5622
Passcode: 675278

Watch YouTube Live Stream
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag

AGENDA:
     I. ROLL CALL
    II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
   III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – October 27, 2022
   IV. NEW BUSINESS
      1. Resolution No. FY2023-005; Resolution Approving the Section Eight     
          Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification for Fiscal    
          Year Ending 2022
      2. Intent of Award, RFP#GHURA-COCC-022-003; Independent Financial 
          Audit Services
      3. Intent to Rescind Board Action Item #120/22, GHURA-06-16-2022-CD     
          BG; Construction of MTM Community Recreational Facility.
   V. OLD BUSINESS
      1. Changer Order to Add a Staircase to the Section 8 Office Expansion – 
          O.H. Construction
  VI. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
      1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting – Tuesday, December 13,     
          2022 @ 12:00 p.m.
 VII. ADJOURNMENT
The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org.
For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for 
special accommodations, please contact Chief Planner – Designated Section 
504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.

This advertisement was paid for by GHURA.





 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 1 of 10 
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., October 27, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the                                       

Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board 

meeting was called to order at 12:07 P.M. Friday, October 27, 2022, at the GHURA 

Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Vice Chairwoman Guzman. She 

indicated that 4 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing 

a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman  
Nate Sanchez, Commissioner  
Emilia Rice, Commissioner  
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner 
(via zoom) 
 
ABSENT: 
Dr. John Rivera, Chairman  
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner  
Anisia Delia, Commissioner  
 
LEGAL COUNSEL: 
 

 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF: 
 
Elizabeth Napoli, Executive Director  
Fernando Esteves, Deputy Director 
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant 
Frances Danieli, Fiscal Controller 
Sonny Perez, AE Manager 
Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator 
Katherine Taitano, CDBG Manager 
Norma San Nicolas, Section 8 
Administrator 
 
PUBLIC:  
 
 

 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Thursday, October 20, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Tuesday, October 25, 2022  

 ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE GHURA BOARD 

 

 

 

 



 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 2 of 10 
 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – October 11, 2022   

[028/22] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve the minutes of the October 

11, 2022 BOC meeting subject to corrections. Commissioner Rice seconded the    

              motion. There were no objections by the other board members. Motion passed                       

 

unanimously.                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                           

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2023-002 approving Above-Step Appointment for Engineer III  

Position (A/E Division)  

 

[029/22] Director Napoli presented Resolution No. FY2023-002 (pg. 1 of 82 

in the board packet) and stated the following: 

• Questions from the BOC will be forwarded to Dr. Kim Bersamin.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman asked whether OM3-8 represented a title. Dr. Bersamin, HR 

Administrator, stated that OM3-8 was a pay grade and step.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about whether the above-step would increase the 

capacity of employees in the A/E division. Dr. Kim Bersamin indicated that they are at 

the tail end of the merit system and based on the staffing needs and retention goals, 

this process is required in the statute to come before the board for approval. She 

added that GHURA has met all the disclosure and transparency requirements.  

Director Napoli added that Mr. Michael Racuyal had been with GHURA for a while and 

stated that Mr. Sonny Perez and Ms. Katherine Taitano can attest to Mr. Racuyal’s 

qualifications and experience. She added that Mr. Racuyal is a valuable asset to 

GHURA and has proven that he is well worth the above-step salary request.  

Deputy Director Esteves indicated that funding for this position is actually neutral 

funding, it isn’t net negative or net positive because all the work they do is funded by 

the work they do. As they stay active, they’re paying for themselves. There are 

projects that other agencies utilize so not only does it benefit other agencies, but it 

also benefits GHURA. If there are opportunities for GHURA to assist other agencies, 

salaries are paid for in that way, as well. Being able to have an engineer that pays for 

itself, in-house, allows GHURA to do more, do things timelier, and ensures that 

projects are far more completed and secure. To have a rare position like this 

presented to us is a win-win situation.  

Commissioner Sanchez inquired about how long Mr. Racuyal held the temporary 

position. Dr. Bersamin stated that he held the temporary position for about a year.  

(*About 5 minutes of technical difficulties from minutes 19.22 to 24.19. 

Recording continued, but the board of commissioners could not be heard.) 



 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 3 of 10 
 

Mr. Sonny Perez, A/E Manager, added that Mr. Racuyal is studying for his Professional 

Engineering License scheduled for April 2023. He is a structural engineer and, in the 

industry, structural engineering is a rare discipline and difficult to find locally.  

 

There were no further discussions.  

[030/22] Commissioner Sanchez motioned to approve Resolution No. FY2023-

002, an approval for the above step appointment for the engineering III 

position, A/E division. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Rice. There were 

not objections by the other board members. Motion carried.  

 

 

2. Resolution No. FY2023-003 approving the Fiscal Year 2023 Section 8 Housing 

Choice Voucher Program Utility Allowance Schedule  

[031/22] Mrs. Norma San Nicolas, Section 8 Administrator, stated that the 

Utility Allowance schedule is used to provide assistance to families. 

Regulation states that the Section 8 Program must establish and maintain a 

schedule and update it annually. For FY 2023 there is an increase of 10%. 

She requested board approval of Resolution No. FY2023-003 approving the 

FY2023 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program Utility Allowance 

Schedule. 

Director Napoli read Resolution FY2023-003, which was included in the BOC 

Board packet.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about whether all the increases were included 

in the Utility Allowance Schedule. Mrs. San Nicolas confirmed this and added that 

each utility is determined by either the household size or by the average usage per 

household.  

Commissioner Sanchez inquired about whether the Section 8 Utility Allowance 

Schedule reflects surcharges that are anticipated soon. Mrs. San Nicolas stated that 

it does not. She added that the Utility Allowance Schedule only reflects what is 

current. Should there be an increase of more than 10% in the future, Section 8 is 

obligated to make the necessary changes to the schedule.  

[032/22] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve the Resolution FY2023-

003 approving the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program Utility 

Allowance Schedule. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion and added to 

revisit the movement should there be an increase of fuel surcharge in excess 

of 10%.  There were no objections. Motioned carried. 



 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 4 of 10 
 

 

 

3. Resolution No. FY2023-004 approving Fiscal Year 2023 Section 8 Housing 

Choice Voucher Program Payment Standards 

 

[033/22] Mrs. Norma San Nicolas, Section 8 Administrator, stated that 

Section 8 is required to establish and maintain a Payment Standards which 

is the maximum assistance that the program can provide the family per 

bedroom size. She added that the Payment Standards is based on the fair 

market rent between 90-110%. Except for the higher rent amount for 

reasonable accommodations, Section 8 cannot exceed 120%. Based on stats 

and what Section 8 sees coming in for rent, the program is setting the higher 

bedroom size at 105%, with the exception of the studio apartment size 

which is at 100%. Currently, the program does not have tenants renting 

studio apartments.  

 

Director Napoli read Resolution No. FY2023-004, the Section 8 Housing Choice 

Voucher Program Payment Standards, which was included in the BOC board 

packet.  

 

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about the guidelines used to set the Payment 

Standards. Mrs. San Nicolas stated that HUD Regulations state that Section 8 can 

set its payment standards between 90 to 110% and not more than 120% for 

persons for reasonable accommodations. She added that if GHURA does not stay 

competitive, families will be returning housing vouchers. GHURA must be 

competitive in the housing market for Section 8 families to secure housing. She 

added that this is an income-based program, a 70/30 Program and sometimes 

100% if the tenant does not have an income.  

 

[034/22] Commissioner Rice moved to approve Resolution FY2023 Section 8 

Housing Choice Voucher Program Payment Standards with the revisions 

noted by Deputy Director on dollar signs as $2,243. Commissioner Sanchez 

seconded the motion. There were no objections. Motion carried.   

 

 

4. Intent of Award, IFB#GHURA-08-23-2022-AMPs 1, 3 & 4; Renovation of Five (5) 

Public Housing Units 

[035/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

• IFB #GHURA-08-23-2022- Bid opening for the project was held on 

September 21, 2022, at 2pm 



 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 5 of 10 
 

• Each of the (2) contractors purchased a set of bid specifications of 

which both submitted bids.  

• Genesis Tech Corp. submitted a bid bond of 15% and a base bid #1 

amount of $176,000 

• OH Construction submitted a bid bond of 15% and a base bid #1 

amount of $155,000 

• Government estimate was at $138,620 

• Base Bid #1 consisted of: 

1. Modernizing (5) GHURA units at AMPs 1, 3, and 4 

2. Includes, but not limited to cleaning building interior and 

common areas, replacing exterior and interior doors, 

carpentry, painting, plumbing, sewer replacement, and 

electrical work. 

• OH Construction provided the lowest responsive and responsible bid 

for Base Bid #1. 

• OH Construction has completed several GHURA projects with good 

standing 

• OH Construction has been cleared by Department of Labor 

Compliance, OSHA and EPLS Debarred list.  

• Based on staff’s review and determination, GHURA is requesting 

board approval to issue the contract to OH Construction for Base Bid 

#1 in the total amount of $155,000  

• Funding is available under the Capital Fund Program. 

[036/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman moved to approve IFB #GHURA -08-23-

2022- AMPs 1,3, &4; Renovation of (5) Public Housing Units in the amount of 

$155,000 to OH Construction. Commissioner Sanchez seconded the motion. 

There were no objections. Motion carried.  

 

5. Intent of Award IFB#GHURA-08-25-2022-AMP4; Replacement of AMP4 

Maintenance Shop Extension  

 

[037/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

 

• Bid opening for this project was held on September 23, 2022 at 2pm 

• Each of the (3) purchased a set of bid specifications 

• Only (2) submitted a bid 

• Genesis Tech Corp submitted a 15% bid bond and a base bid #1 

amount of $108.000 

• OH Construction submitted a 15% bid bond and a base bid #1 amount 

of $155,500.  

• Government estimate was at $134,653.36 



 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 6 of 10 
 

• Base Bid #1 is located in AMP4 GHURA Main office in Toto-Mongmong-

Maite.  

• The project consists of design and construction of the new storage 

expansion, which consists of a storage room and a restroom.  

• Genesis Tech Corp. provided the lowest responsive and responsible 

bid for Base Bid #1 

• Genesis Tech Corp. has completed several GHURA projects with good 

standing 

• Genesis Tech Corp. has been cleared by DOL Compliance, OSHA, and 

EPLS Debarred list.  

• Based on AE staff’s review, GHURA is requesting that the board 

approval to issue the contract to Genesis Tech Corp for Base Bid #1 in 

the amount of $180,000 

• Funding is available under the Public Housing Operating Reserves.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about whether Mr. Sonny Perez, AE 

Manager, was comfortable with Genesis Tech Corp bid being below the 

government’s estimate. Mr. Perez confirmed that he is comfortable with the bid.  

[038/22] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve Intent of Award to 

IFB#GHURA-08-25-2022-AMP4; Replacement of AMP4 Maintenance Shop 

Extension in the amount of $108,000 to Genesis Tech Corp. Commissioner Rice 

seconded the motion. There were no objections. Motion carried.  

 

 

 

6. Intent of Award IFB#GHURA-09-02-2022-SI; Site Improvements for AMP1 

 

[039/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

 

• IFB#GHURA-09-02-2022 bid opening was held on September 28,2022 

at 2pm 

• (3) contractors purchased a set of bid specifications 

• (2) submitted a bid 

• OH Construction submitted a 15% bid bond and a base bid #1 amount 

of $189,500. 

• Genesis Tech Corp submitted a 15% bid bond and a base bid #1 

amount of $150,000 

• The government estimate was at $294,677.29 

• Base Bid #1 is a “Design Build” project with the intent to upgrade 

existing concrete swale/bio-retention swale, catch basins and 

infiltration vault to meet CNMI and Guam Stormwater Management 



 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 7 of 10 
 

Manual 2006 and other applicable codes. Includes tree and sandbox 

removal. 

• Professional engineer services are required to design and prepare 

documents for building permit. 

• AE staff contacted Dr. Austin Shelton, Director of UOG’s Center for 

Island Sustainability and UOG Sea Grant about tree removal for the 

project. As of Oct. 18, 2022, AE staff awaits a response. 

• In review of bid results, Genesis Tech Corp provide the lowest 

responsive and responsible bid for Base Bid #1. 

• Genesis Tech Corp has been cleared by DOL Compliance, OSHA, and 

EPLS Debarred list 

• Based on AE Staff’s review and determination, GHUR Ais requesting 

approval to issue the contract to Genesis Tech Corp for Base Bid #1 in 

the amount of $150,000. 

• Funding available under the Capital Fund Program. 

Mr. Perez added that a previous award for Genesis Tech was at AMP1 Therefore, 

Genesis Tech can get their benefits from the economy of scale by project 

location. These two projects are near one another so Genesis Tech will use the 

same labor force when they when they're performing their renovations. When 

the materials come in for this AMP, they can move over and back and forth 

because they are within the same neighborhood. That is why they're able to 

provide GHURA with that price. 

[040/22] Commissioner Rice moved to approve the Intent of Award IFB#GHURA 

-09-02-2022-S1-AMP1; Site Improvements for AMP1 to Genesis Tech Corp at 

$150,000. Commissioner Sanchez seconded the motion. There were no 

objections. Motion carried.  

 

7. Intent of Award IFB#GHURA-09-01-2022-MOD8-AMPs 2, 3 & 4; Renovation of 

Eight (8) Public Housing Units 

 

[041/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

 

• Bid opening for this project was held on September 27, 2022 at 2pm 

• Each of the (2) contractors purchased a set of bid specifications 

• (2) submitted a bid 

• Genesis Tech Corp submitted a 15% bid bond and a base bid #1 

amount of $103,000, base bid #2 amount of $72,187, and base bid #3 

amount of $122,000. Total bid submitted: $297.187 



 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 8 of 10 
 

• OH Construction submitted a 15% bid bond and a base bid #1 amount 

of $121,500, base bid #2 amount of 72,500, and base bid #3 amount of 

$142,000. Total amount submitted: $336,000. 

• Government estimate for base bid #1 was $115,697.50. Base bid #2, 

$80,242.50 and Base bid #3, 139,375.00. Total estimate: $335,315.00 

• Project is to modernize units per scope of work: 

1. Base bid #1- (3) units in AMP4, Toto and Dededo 

2. Base bid #2- (2) units in AMP2, Yona and Inarajan 

3. Base bid #3- (3) units in AMP3, Umatac and Merizo 

• Modernization includes, but not limited to cleaning building interior 

and exterior and common areas, replacing exterior and interior 

doors, carpentry, painting, plumbing, sewer replacement, and 

electrical work.  

• Genesis Tech Corp. provided the lowest responsive and responsible 

bid for all (3) Base Bids and has completed several GHURA projects 

with good standing. They have also been cleared by DOL Compliance, 

OSHA, and EPLS Debarred list. 

• Based on AE staff’s review and determination, GHURA is requesting 

approval of the board to issue the contract to Genesis Tech Corp, for 

all (3) base bids in the amount of $297,187.00. 

• Funding is available under the Capital Fund Program. 

 

[042/22] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve the IFB#GHURA-09-01-

2022-MOD8-AMPs; Renovation of (8) Public Housing Units in the amount of 

$297,187.00 to Genesis Tech Corp. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. 

There were no objections. Motion carried.  

 

8. Change Order To remove the Walkway Scope of Work; Sinajana Arts Center 

 – Mega United 

 

[043/22] Mr. Sonny Perez stated the following: 

 

• The original walkway design starts from the delivery point of the 

mayor's office, and it goes right into the mayor's first door.  

• Proposal by the mayor to extend the walkway all the way to the 

community center, this is not a part of the original scope of work 

• AE had structural engineer and construction manager for the Art 

Center prepare a partial design for a covered walkway 

• Funding of $250,000 located by Mayor Hofmann 

• A write-up of a deductive change order to remove the short length 

walkway from the total scope was included in the BOC board packet. 

• Mega United had been notified of this change 



 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 9 of 10 
 

• A formal bid will be sent out for the entire length of the walkway, 

which will be from the mayor’s office, passed the Art Center, and into 

the community center.  

• Board approval will be for the deductive change order.  

 

[044/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman moved to approve the Change Order 

request #8A to remove the walkway scope of work for the Sinajana Art 

Center with Mega United in the amount of $71,123.20. Commissioner Corpus 

seconded the motion. There were no objections. Motion carried.  

 

9. Change Order  

To add a staircase to the Section 8 Office Expansion – O.H. Construction 

 

[045/22] Mr. Sonny Perez stated the following: 

• Change Order to expand the Section 8 Interview rooms and to add a 

room for a new office of A/E Division 

• Layout is located right outside the BOC Conference room with the 

entrance in the lobby.  

• A/E office to be on the second floor, above the new Section 8 interview 

room. 

• Original concept was ingress and egress through the FISCAL offices, 

due to concerns from the FISCAL staff, a new design which included a 

staircase was created 

• Contractor quote requested. Original contract amount was for 

$25,000 

• Additive concrete staircase, doors, etc. was for $70,000 

• Request for board approval will be at the next scheduled BOC meeting 

 

  V.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Project Updates 
 

[046/22] Director Napoli stated that GHURA completed its part of the project 
for the Central Community Arts Hall.  

  
2. Division Updates  

 
[047/22] Director Napoli stated that any updates or discussions under this item 
may be tabled for the next BOC meeting.  

 

 

 

 



 GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of October 27, 2022                                                                          Page 10 of 10 
 

                                                                                                                                      
VI.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
 Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, November 15, 2022 

@ 12:00 p.m.  

 

[048/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman requested that an email be sent to all the 

commissioners regarding alternative dates for the next BOC meeting.     

 

    VII.   ADJOURNMENT  

 

[049/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman moved to adjourn the GHURA BOC meeting 
at 1:55pm. There were no objections by the other board members.  

 

 

 

 
 
 



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 1 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 2 of 51



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Suidat Guahan 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2023-005 

 

 

 Moved by:      Seconded by:      

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SECTION EIGHT MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT 

PROGRAM (SEMAP) CERTIFICATION (FORM HUD-52648) FOR FISCAL YEAR 

ENDING 2022 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Section 8 Management Assessment Program is a management tool developed and 

designed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the purpose 

of identifying and assessing the Authority’s management capabilities and to assist in 

the improvement of the Authority’s program operations; and 

 

WHEREAS, 24 CFR 985.101(a) of the Code of Federal Regulations requires Public  

Housing Agencies to submit the Section 8 Management Assessment Program 

Certification form within 60 days after the end of its fiscal year; and 

 

WHEREAS, 24 CFR 985.101(a) requires PHA’s Section 8 Management Assessment Program 

certification to be approved by the agency’s Board of Commissioners; and therefore it 

be 

 

RESOLVED, that the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Board of Commissioners approves the 

Section 8 Management Assessment Program Certification for fiscal year ending 2022. 

 

 

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – NOVEMBER 22, 2022 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINED: 

 

 

 

     I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true 

     And correct copy of the Resolution duly adopted 

 by the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 

Board of Commissioners on November 22, 2022. 

 

 

  

 

      FERNANDO B. ESTEVES 

      Secretary/Executive Director (Acting) 

 

 

 

 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 3 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 4 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 5 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 6 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 7 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 8 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 9 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 10 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 11 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 12 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 13 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 14 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 15 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 16 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 17 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 18 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 19 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 20 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 21 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 22 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 23 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 24 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 25 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 26 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 27 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 28 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 29 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 30 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 31 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 32 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 33 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 34 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 35 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 36 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 37 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 38 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 39 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 40 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 41 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 42 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 43 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 44 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 45 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 46 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 47 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 48 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 49 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 50 of 51



 
Board Meeting of November 22, 2022

 
PAGE 51 of 51




